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California Political Attorneys Association 
c/o Kaufman Legal Group, APC 

777 South Figueroa Street, Suite 4050 
Los Angeles, CA 90017-5864 

Telephone: (213) 452-6565 

December 16, 2019 

VIA E-MAIL 

Chair Miadich and Commissioners Cardenas, Hatch and Hayward 
Fair Political Practices Commission  
1102 Q Street, Suite 3000 
Sacramento, CA 95811 

Re: Request for Regulatory Changes 

Dear Chair Miadich and Commissioners:  

We write on behalf of the California Political Attorneys Association (“CPAA”), 
regarding Item 9 on the Commission’s December 19, 2019 meeting agenda (Regulation Projects 
and Schedule for 2020). We appreciate the Commission putting forth the schedule and its list of 
regulatory priorities, and we look forward to working with Commission staff to provide input on 
these projects throughout the year. We respectfully request that the Commission consider making 
the following regulatory changes: (1) requiring notification to donors upon transfers between a 
candidate’s controlled committees; (2) permitting state candidates to remedy excess 
contributions within a reasonable time period; (3) requiring inclusion of the relevant election 
date on statement of organizations; and (4) additional review of recordkeeping requirements for 
Multipurpose Organizations. 

1. Notification to Donors Upon Transfers Between a Candidate’s Controlled Committees

A state candidate may transfer campaign funds from one election committee to another 
election committee belonging to that same candidate. Pursuant to FPPC Regulation 18536, the 
candidate committee making the transfer must use a reasonable accounting method, such as last 
in, first out (“LIFO”) or first in, first out (“FIFO”) to attribute the transfer to specific 
contributors. The transferred funds then count toward the amount the contributors may give to 
the committee receiving the transfer.  
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Currently, there is no requirement to notify the donors whose contributions are 
transferred from one committee to another. Donors are almost always unaware that their prior 
contributions have been transferred to a new committee. Nor are they aware that the prior 
contribution now counts against the donors’ contribution limit to the new committee. This can 
lead to the donors inadvertently making excess contributions to the new committee. To provide 
transparency to those donors, we request that the Commission adopt a requirement for notifying 
donors whose contributions are transferred between a candidate’s controlled committees where 
attribution is required by FPPC Regulation 18536. 
 
2. Remedying Excess Contributions 
 

Currently, state law does not provide a mechanism to remedy excess contributions 
received by candidates and committees. In most instances, excess contributions are the result of 
human error and are inadvertent in nature, rather than bad actors intentionally contributing over 
the legal contribution limit. For example, more and more donors are choosing to contribute to 
candidates via reoccurring credit card contributions, resulting in inadvertent excess contributions. 
Other times, donors do not realize that they’ve already contributed the maximum allowed under 
the law. Similarly, excess contributions can result from campaign staff error. 
 

Other jurisdictions have long-standing provisions in their laws that allow campaigns to 
cure excess contributions. For example, federal candidates may remedy excess contributions by 
refunding the excessive amount within 60 days of when the contribution is received. Similarly, 
City of Los Angeles candidates may remedy excess contributions by refunding the excessive 
amount within 75 days after the filing deadline for the campaign finance report in which the 
excess contribution was disclosed. We request that the Commission adopt a similar rule that 
allows candidates and committees to cure excess contributions by refunding any excess portion 
within a reasonable time period.   
 
3. Requiring Inclusion of the Relevant Election Date on Form 410 for Candidates and Ballot 
Measures 
 
Currently, the Form 410 (Statement of Organization) requires a controlled committee to include 
the name of the candidate, officeholder or state measure proponent, the elective office sought or 
held, and the year of election, among other things. For committees that are primarily formed to 
support or oppose a candidate or ballot measure, the committee is required to include the 
candidate and or measure’s full title, as well as the candidate’s office sought or held or the 
measure’s jurisdiction. 
 
We propose that controlled committees and primarily formed committees be required to include 
the relevant election date (as opposed to the year of election) on the committee’s Statement of 
Organization. Requiring committees to include this information on the Statement of Organization 
would be helpful to filers to confirm if a 24-hour report is required, and would impose a minimal 
burden on committees that are already required to include other similar information on the 
Statement of Organization. 
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4. Reconsideration of Regulations Governing Recordkeeping for Multipurpose Organizations

At its September 2019 meeting, the Commission considered and adopted regulations 
implementing new recordkeeping requirements for Multipurpose Organizations. At that time, 
CPAA submitted written comments requesting various changes to the proposed regulations. By 
definition, Multipurpose Organizations are entities that exist for various reasons other than 
making California political expenditures, and we cautioned the Commission against imposing a 
recordkeeping scheme that places overly burdensome recordkeeping requirements on these 
organizations’ non-California and non-political activities. While the Commission ultimately 
adopted the regulations as initially drafted, we respectfully request that you bring back these 
regulations for discussion in 2020. We believe that having a follow-up discussion regarding these 
regulations is important and that we will have insight to provide based on our collective 
experience advising clients under the existing regulations. We are attaching CPAA’s comment 
letter and alternative draft regulations submitted in September 2019 for your reference.  

CPAA has engaged Commission staff on these and other projects, and we appreciate the 
Commission’s consideration of the proposals set forth in this letter.  Please do not hesitate to 
contact us if you wish to discuss these matters further.  

Very truly yours, 

Stacey J. Shin 
Kaufman Legal Group 
Chair, Regulatory Committee, California Political Attorneys Association 

Emily Andrews 
Olson Hagel & Fishburn LLP 
Member, Regulatory Committee, California Political Attorneys Association 

Erika Boyd 
Olson Hagel & Fishburn LLP 
Member, Regulatory Committee, California Political Attorneys Association 
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